Final Report from Joint Public Advisory Committee workshop

"Reducing Ecosystem Vulnerability, Responding to Community Needs: Tools and Information for North American Action"

> 13–14 December 2012 Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico

Contents

Executive Summary: Principal Recommendations from the Workshop	1
Background	2
Workshop Objectives	2
Agenda	2
Workshop Activities: Thursday, 13 December 2012	4
Opening and presentation of objectives, methodology and participants	4
Keynote presentation	5
Presentations: The impact of increased ecosystem vulnerability on the livelih health of communities in North America	
Group work	5
Group 1	6
Group 2	6
Group 3	7
Group 4	7
Group 5	8
Group 6	9
Group 9	9
Group 10	9
Group 11	10
Group 12	10
Presentation: Framework document for capacity building to improve the vulnerable communities in North America	
Opportunities and means	11
Potential applications	13
Tools	13
Challenges	14
Group exercise with tools for identifying vulnerable systems	15
1. Empowering communities	16
2. Use of mapping data	16
3. Scales for identifying vulnerable communities and ecosystems	17
4. Data necessary for understanding new threats and preventing consequences	17
5. Recommendations for making data accessible	
Workshop Activities: Friday, 14 December 2012	
Action proposals	
Ministries	19

Local governments	20
Citizens	22
Recommendations for JPAC to serve as a bridge and to represent communities and citiz	zens 23
Policies	23
Dissemination	
Recommendations for communication to other agents and sectors	24
Mass media	
Other media	24
Policies	
Ideas for future workshops	25
- Dissemination	25
Organization	
Topics	26
Workshop Conclusions and Closing	
Annex: Workshop Photos	27

Executive Summary: Principal Recommendations from the Workshop

In the framework of its third ordinary session of 2012, the Joint Public Advisory Council (JPAC) of the Commission for Environmental Cooperation (CEC) hosted a workshop entitled "Reducing ecosystem vulnerability, responding to community needs: tools and information for North American action" on 13–14 December 2012 in Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, with participation by experts and citizens from Canada, the United States and Mexico.

Following is a list of the main recommendations from the workshop.

Tools and information adopted for reducing ecosystem vulnerability and responding to community needs may be disseminated more widely through institutions and organizations in the three countries and at various levels.

Capacities for adapting or responding to vulnerability factors requires tools and information that are accessible and suitable for the conditions characterizing the various stakeholders at each level of management and decision-making, and thus the following should be taken into consideration:

- national languages and indigenous languages;
- language appropriate for each setting (subnational and local governments, businesses, organizations, citizens);
- accessible formats with simple technologies.

The response to vulnerability factors will be more efficient if both the available information and channels of communication among peers and between different settings are increased. It is important to inform but also to empower—for communicating and building consensus and co-responsibility.

Networking is more effective and less costly when it is promoted from civic and local organizations. It can be fomented through small donations and schemes for channeling revenue from fines and compensations to social action.

It is necessary to direct resources toward building capacities in local responses to vulnerability factors.

Elevating capacities for responding to vulnerability factors requires influencing contents and practices in the educational system.

At each level of management and decision-making, tools are needed for identifying risks and aspects requiring monitoring (red flags and priorities) in response to vulnerability factors.

In North America there are territories that, while not located along borders, are considered "borders" because they are subject to socioeconomic processes and pressures characteristic of border areas (for example, Cancún).

It is important to address key issues in the paradigms and models of management and response:

- to overcome the apparent contradiction between scientific knowledge and traditional knowledge, in order to incorporate the best of both;
- to move beyond a sector-based perspective that makes it difficult to find comprehensive (economic-health-environment) responses.

It is important to move forward in the harmonization of regulatory aspects and standards in the region, in areas such as: toxic substances, fuel quality and the disposal of hazardous wastes (for example, batteries and energy-saving light bulbs).

Background

On 13-14 December 2012 the Joint Public Advisory Committee (JPAC) of the Commission for Environmental Cooperation (CEC) held a workshop entitled "Reducing ecosystem vulnerability, responding to community needs: tools and information for North American action" in Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico. The workshop was open to the public, and addressed the topics of the resilience and vulnerability of ecosystems and communities.

Some months earlier, JPAC had organized a preliminary meeting in New Orleans, Louisiana, USA in the form of a public workshop on the same topic, resulting in a document entitled "Resilient Future: Voices of North Americans on Policy and Action." This document provides guidelines for assisting local and government leaders in adopting measures in response to critical problems affecting communities in North America and other regions of the world.

The current document presents the results of the workshop held in Mérida, as a continuation of the event in New Orleans, with the aim of discussing and exploring options for reducing communities' vulnerability and reviewing tools that may be useful in the work carried out in different ecosystems.

Workshop Objectives

- Analyze factors that make ecosystems and communities vulnerable.
- Become familiar with tools for evaluating vulnerability, mapping changes and stressors, and improving environmental health.
- Identify actions for improving and disseminating tools.
- Propose actions for reducing communities' vulnerability to environmental phenomena.

Agenda

Thursday, 13 December 2012				
Time	Activity			
8:00-9:00	Registration of participants (Salón Yucatán 1)			
9:00-9:30	 Opening and introductory remarks Eduardo Batllori Sampedro, Secretary of Urban Development and Environment of the State of Yucatán Irasema Coronado, Executive Director, Commission for Environmental Cooperation (CEC) Martín Gutiérrez Lacayo, JPAC Chair for 2012 			
9:30-9:45	Presentation of objectives, methodology and participants, by Francisco Padrón Gil, Director, Mexican Initiative for Conservation Learning (<i>Iniciativa Mexicana de Aprendizaje de la Conservación</i> — IMAC)			

9:45-13:30	Ecosystem vulnerability
	9:45-10:05 Keynote presentation Elizabeth Smith, Associate National Program Director, Sustainable and Healthy Communities Research Program, US EPA
	10:05-10:30 Question and answer period
	 10:30-11:30 Presentations: The impact of increased ecosystem vulnerability on the livelihoods and health of communities in North America Panelists: Evelia Rivera Arriaga, Secretary of Environment and Sustainable Development of the State of Campeche, Mexico Chief Carl Sidney, Chief Executive Officer of the Teslin Tlingit Council, Yukon, Canada Albert W. Miller, Commissioner, Jeff Davis County, USA
	11:30-11:45 Break
	11:45-13:30 Dialogue between panelists and public on their perceptions of increased ecosystem vulnerability and its impact on the livelihoods and health of communities in North America
13:30-14:30	Lunch [provided] (Salón Yucatán 3 and Salón Yucatán 4)
14:30-14:50	Presentation: Framework for capacity building to improve the health of vulnerable communities in North America, by Orlando Cabrera, CEC Program Manager, Air Quality and PRTR
14:50-15:00	Question and answer period
15:00-16:15	 Group work to generate feedback on framework document What are the opportunities and the most effective ways to distribute the framework document to all of North America? What are the potential applications (tools, guides, etc.) of the framework? What tools are needed to reduce human vulnerability to chemical pollution? What are the challenges that tool developers may face with the creation of these tools?
16:15-16:30	Break
16:30-18:00	 Group exercise: Tools to map and identify vulnerable systems (natural and human) and to estimate future change Introduction by Karen Richardson, Program Manager, Terrestrial and Marine Ecosystems Group work Geographic areas undergoing large amounts of change Factors generating change Factors that can already be measured and factors for which data are needed Different ways to integrate stressors and conditions Ways to visualize possible future conditions Ways to visualize possible future conditions
18:00	Wrap-up by Francisco Padrón Gil

Friday, 14 December 2012			
Time	Activity		
9:00-10:30	Group work: The main objectives of the session will be to develop proposals for actions and to strengthen the ability of North Americans to identify vulnerable ecosystems and human communities, including an assessment of access to current information and needs to improve access. Proposals to include actions for individuals and for local and federal governments.		
10:30-10:45	Break		
10:45-12:45	Submission of proposals for action, by rapporteurs and facilitator		
12:45-13:00	Conclusions, by facilitator and JPAC Chair		
13:00-13:15	Report by representatives of the national and governmental advisory committees (NAC and GAC)		
13:15-13:30	 Update on JPAC work and administrative matters Election of JPAC Chair for 2013 JPAC priorities for 2013 and next meetings 		
13:30	Closing		
13:30-14:30	Lunch [provided] (Salón Yucatán 3)		

Workshop Activities: Thursday, 13 December 2012

Opening and presentation of objectives, methodology and participants

The session began with some welcoming and introductory remarks from the Secretary of Urban Development and Environment of the Yucatán state government, Eduardo Batllori Sampedro. Then, the new CEC Executive Director, Irasema Coronado, also welcomed participants and thanked them for attending the workshop. Lastly, the JPAC Chair for 2012, Martín Gutiérrez Lacayo, highlighted the importance of listening to communities and making recommendations to authorities.

Next, the workshop facilitator, Francisco Padrón Gil, presented the objectives, agenda and dynamics of the workshop, and also proposed a series of principles for working together, in the interest of a productive workshop.

Participants agreed on the following principles for working together:

- Everyone participates.
- Everyone listens attentively.
- Participants' positions and titles are left at the door.
- Comments should be brief and constructive.
- It is necessary to raise one's hand to ask to speak.
- Verbal and body language must be respectful.
- Participants must place their cell phones on the "vibrate only" mode and answer them outside the room.
- Punctuality.

Keynote presentation

The keynote presentation was given by Elizabeth Smith, Associate National Program Director of the Sustainable and Healthy Communities Research Program of the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

Smith pointed to the importance of incorporating a number of perspectives when addressing the issue of communities' vulnerability and environmental changes. She also underscored the impact from pollution and climate changes as triggering factors.

She emphasized the usefulness of geomapping that includes spatial data for vulnerability studies, and mentioned the example of the US environmental atlas (EnviroAtlas) used by the department where she works. She said that consideration is given to possible scenarios of "what would happen if..." for the purpose of confronting future environmental changes and natural disasters. She also indicated that geomapping may be used at national and regional levels, and that this workshop was playing a key role in linking online resources, such as EnviroAtlas, with individuals having direct experience in communities.

Her presentation in Powerpoint may be consulted at: <<u>www.slideshare.net/CECOnline/ppresentation-from-elizabeth-smith-ecosystem-vulnerability-assessment-approaches-from-epas-regional-vulnerability-assessment-reva-program</u>>.

Presentations: The impact of increased ecosystem vulnerability on the livelihoods and health of communities in North America

The first presentation was given by Evelia Rivera, the Secretary of Environment and Sustainable Development in the state of Campeche. She talked about the vulnerability of coastal and marine areas; emphasized the links among coastal, marine and terrestrial ecosystems; and acknowledged the importance of their comprehensive management for communities' continued existence. Rivera pointed to the importance of being prepared for extreme environmental phenomena, and evaluating the impacts from different human activities in order to analyze the necessary adaptation.

Then, Chief Carl Sidney, who is the Chief Executive Officer of the Teslin Tlingit Council Yukon in Canada, spoke about the changes experienced in his region and mentioned the various problems resulting from climate change, overpopulation and trash.

The last presentation was given by Albert W. Miller, who is the Jeff Davis County Commissioner. He spoke about the pressure experienced by the communities in his county due to the fragmentation of habitats and the presence of invasive species, as well as the desertification of grasslands.

Following the presentations, participants divided into work groups, to generate questions and comments to be presented to the panel.

Group work

With the aim of initiating dialogue between panelists and the public, participants were divided into groups, taking care to include representatives of all sectors, organizations and countries in each group.

In order to increase the effectiveness of these efforts, three key players were selected in each group:

- *Moderator*: responsible for indicating permission to speak, encouraging everyone's participation and guaranteeing that good use is made of the capacities of all those present.
- *Rapporteur*: responsible for recording preliminary and final results, as well as agreements reached by teams.
- *Time-keeper*: person designated to calculate the distribution of time among the various tasks and maintain the team informed regarding the use of time.

The tasks carried out by each working group were the following:

- Introductions, giving name and activity.
- Selecting moderator and rapporteur.
- Naming time-keeper.
- Generating questions and comments regarding the presentations by panelists.

Next, a plenary question-and-answer session was held, generating the following comments and questions for panelists.

Group 1

Questions

- 1. Given that not all the impacts from an activity can be economically compensated for, what are the challenges for resolving the problems that arise from communities' demands for their lands?
- 2. To what degree are communities becoming interested in access to information and education for resolving their environmental problems?
- 3. How can the adopted tools be made more accessible so that communities apply them correctly?

Group 2

Questions

FOR EVELIA RIVERA

- 1. What strategies are being used for making known the effects from climate change in communities?
- 2. How effective are public policies (for example, for genetically-modified organisms and coastal development) and how are they being carried out?

FOR CARL SIDNEY

1. Have health effects derived from pollution (malformations, reproductive problems, chronic illnesses) been observed in communities?

FOR ELIZABETH SMITH

1. Can the EPA influence federal policies in order to diminish the purchase of petroleum extracted through methods that cause greater environmental impact?

FOR ALBERT MILLER

1. What have communities experienced in relation to the hydraulic fracturing taking place in the county? Can you share the knowledge generated in this regard?

Comments

FOR CARL SIDNEY

1. Your community should continue to participate in order to interest other communities in environmental protection.

FOR EVELIA RIVERA

1. Policies are contradictory because on the one hand, they protect the environment, and on the other hand, they permit oil platforms, massive tourism, etc.

Group 3

Comments

- 1. It is suggested that an example be given of an environmental threat or stressor that makes the state of Campeche vulnerable.
- 2. It would be good to mention a mechanism for assuring that developers comply with legislation.
- 3. It is important to expand the information on the participation of civil society in resolving problems associated with its environmental resources.

Questions

- 1. What have we learned from living in extreme conditions that can help us adapt to impacts from climate change? Taking into consideration the sustainable use of wildlife resources, what forms of organization can be adopted by communities?
- 2. Is it possible to develop human resources dedicated exclusively to disseminating information among vulnerable communities?
- 3. What would the lines of municipal public policy need to be in order to promote binational or trinational agreements in the shortest time frame possible?

Group 4

Questions

- 1. What are the legislative initiatives for achieving resilience at the local level in situations characterized by climate change? Are there quick, efficient initiatives for each country?
- 2. From a multicultural perspective, how can we communicate ecosystem vulnerabilities in such a way that behaviors are modified throughout the spheres of decision-making at local, regional, national and global levels?
- 3. How can we share ideas and experiences in a generalized way in order to enrich our understanding and participation in terms of reducing ecosystem vulnerability from a multicultural perspective?
- 4. How can we convince communities to discontinue some of their traditional practices in order to confront climate change?

Joint Public Advisory Council workshop, Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, 13-14 December 2012

- 5. What degree of information exchanging have we achieved? Are rural communities already concerned about resilience and climate change, as well as the urgency of confronting these issues? How much do they know about this?
- 6. Which environmental policies are necessary (or which ones must be changed) in order to achieve and maintain goals?
- 7. Is there a proposal or program?
- 8. How are environmental issues perceived and prioritized? Will it be necessary to develop a plan or record to achieve objectives in an efficient, comprehensive manner?

Comments

- 1. We believe it is important to optimize decision-making in a coordinated manner, taking into consideration all possible interests in order to achieve effectiveness and efficiency.
- 2. In practice, most people in non-professional settings are completely unaware of issues around climate change.
- 3. We must urgently optimize efforts in a coordinated manner, addressing diverse interests in order to be effective in raising funds and formulating policies!
- 4. It is important to work in a coordinated manner.
- 5. Compensations must be optimized.
- 6. It is difficult to join forces around the cause of taking action in response to climate change.
- 7. We need to speak in different languages and at different levels in order to promote an understanding of climate change.

Group 5

Questions

GENERAL

 How aware are we that, according to two environmental advisors of the World Bank (2009),¹ 51% of the emissions worldwide contributing to climate change are due to industrial livestock production and agricultural practices that use genetically-modified seeds and pesticides? This should cause us to reflect upon the way we eat, and to opt for other alternatives that are more responsible in caring for nature, as our ancestors did.

FOR EVELIA RIVERA

- 1. As a public servant, can you tell us what government programs are being implemented for society's environmental benefit?
- 2. How can we increase the capacity for resilience among human communities affected or likely to be affected?

FOR ALBERT MILLER

1. How can one continue to divide up land ownership without dividing up the land?

Joint Public Advisory Council workshop, Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, 13-14 December 2012

¹ Robert Goodland and Jeff Anhang. Livestock and Climate Change. *World Watch* November/December 2009. http://www.worldwatch.org/files/pdf/Livestock%20and%20Climate%20Change.pdf.

FOR CARL SIDNEY

- 1. As an ethnic group, what has been your experience in terms of local organizing for governing your territory?
- 2. How have you managed to continue to follow an ancestral economic model in your community and in what percentage are you maintaining this tendency?

Group 6

Comments

- 1. There are numerous studies that document the health effects from exposure to chemicals: we must act (to reduce the use of toxic products).
- 2. It is possible that local problems are being widely ignored, and it is possible that local solutions are not receiving the respect they deserve. Both traditional practices and scientific knowledge are necessary.
- 3. Cross-border problems must be vigorously addressed, particularly those associated with shared water systems. Alternatives for the use of resources are needed for both countries involved.
- 4. One of the challenges is to listen to voices that have been hidden up until now, but that are choosing a path to move forward.

Questions

- 1. How can we increase local knowledge and participation? Some examples?
- 2. Is it time to harmonize land use plans at the local, regional and national levels? How can this be achieved from an ecosystem perspective that includes the oceans?
- 3. How can we get all levels of government and the community "on the same page?"

Group 9

Comment

1. Pressure from livestock production activities—which generate deforestation and fragmentation—is a real problem in Mexico, and this includes biosphere reserves such as Calakmul in Campeche and Los Tuxtlas in Veracruz.

Question

1. Are other pollutants included in the proposal presented that should be tracked, in addition to nitrogen and atrazine?

Group 10

Questions

1. How can general models for environmental measurements be adapted to the reality (in social, economic, political and environmental terms) in each community, with their particular characteristics?

- 2. How can we make the environmental issue, and particularly climate change, a cross-cutting and not sector-based issue in relation to public policies, and how can we assure that decision-making takes place at the sub-continental level (and that the decisions are respected)?
- 3. How can we assure that traditional ecological knowledge is integrated into strategies for confronting climate change, and that governments, scientists and institutions accept this knowledge as valid?

Comments

- 1. Energy-generating companies—which are important players in relation to climate change—are not present in this dialogue.
- 2. The importance of marine reserves as a tool for mitigation and resilience in response to climate change has been corroborated (article from Stanford University, COBI, A.C. and the *Cooperativa Pesquera de Isla Natividad* published in PLOS ONE).
- 3. The CEC must publicly express its position and assume a clearly-defined role in response to the water crisis and climate change.

Group 11

Questions

- 1. In the United States the initiatives associated with climate change affect industries. How have these industries been approached? Can you recommend anything to us that we might be able to apply in Mexico?
- 2. Is it necessary to impose capital accumulation above environmental conservation and sustainability?
- 3. Is it necessary to implement more actions in which civil society participates?
- 4. How can we turn proposals and actions in Mexico into a reality when the government isn't interested in even approaching polluters such as industries?
- 5. How could the CEC assist us in changing public policies in Mexico?
- 6. Why are communities ignored when their participation is necessary?
- 7. Why is awareness-raising in communities not granted the importance it deserves?

Group 12

Questions

- 1. How can we increase community awareness of the factors affecting the environment and provoking its vulnerability to dangers such as rising ocean levels?
- 2. How can we communicate the differences between effects from climate change and effects caused directly by local human action?

FOR BETSY

3. What would be required to expand the scope of the Enviro-Atlas to include all of North America?

FOR EVELIA RIVERA

4. What is the work plan for implementing a mitigation plan in response to climate change in Campeche?

Comment

1. It would be good to link the work of initiatives such as this workshop with the work of the National Climate Assessment in the US.

Presentation: Framework document for capacity building to improve the health of vulnerable communities in North America.

The CEC Program Manager for Air Quality and the Pollutant Release and Transfer Register (PRTR), Orlando Cabrera, presented a framework document for capacity building aimed at improving the health of vulnerable communities in North America. The objective of this document is to assist communities in identifying both possible health risks arising from environmental pollution and actions to mitigate such risks. The focus is to build the capacities of North American communities, primarily within vulnerable populations, such as children and indigenous communities. Trinational collaboration is required, through already-existing tools and sources, and with participation by interested individuals and organizations. The information resulting from the framework document for capacity building to improve the health of vulnerable communities in North America will be used to produce tools adapted to specific individuals and communities.

If you would like more information, please visit: <<u>www.slideshare.net/CECOnline/jpac-workshop-</u> <u>merida-presentation-from-cec-program-manager-orlando-cabrera-framework-document-to-improve-</u> <u>the-environmental-health-of-vulnerable-communities-across-north-america</u>>.

After the presentation, participants worked in teams to respond to four questions:

- 1. What are the most effective **opportunities and means** for distributing the framework document throughout North America?
- 2. What are the **potential applications** (tools, guidelines, etc.) of the strategic framework for improving environmental health in vulnerable communities?
- 3. What **tools** are needed to diminish human vulnerability to chemical pollution?
- 4. What **challenges** will likely present themselves **in the creation of these tools**?

The results were the following:

Opportunities and means

- Accompany these tools with a process that empowers people and benefits them economically.
- Use a multivariable, focalized strategy for dissemination.
- Analyze the type of recipients as well as their origin, culture, sector, etc.
- Resolve the problem of excessive information available, establishing criteria for:
 - selecting sources and reference documents,
 - defining "public" objective, and
 - selecting key stakeholders (*ejidos*, municipalities, etc.) for transmitting information.
- Establish increasingly local chains and strategies for dissemination.

Joint Public Advisory Council workshop, Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, 13-14 December 2012

- Provide specific information in line with the interests of communities.
- Translate information into national and indigenous languages.
- Provide incentives for implementation of projects.
- Identify successful social networks and stakeholders that can transmit the message regarding vulnerability and resilience.
- Prepare trainers and those responsible for dissemination.
- Develop a relationship with responsible companies so they will disseminate the message to other companies.
- Provide funding for the distribution of materials.
 - Through the North American Partnership for Environmental Community Action (NAPECA), offer small grants for adapting materials to specific local settings and for their distribution.
 - Explore possibilities with educational centers and universities for students to take the framework document to specific communities through their social service or field work, projects, theses, etc.
 - Establish agreements with public and private universities and educational systems.
- Take advantage of conferences and events that have their own participants and networks, to
 present the framework document. For example:
 - National Congress on Climate Change Research (*Congreso Nacional de Investigación en Cambio Climático*), UNAM.
 - Convention on Biological Diversity.
- Distribute the framework document among government authorities (in particular, disseminate it through their social and public health programs).
- Seek assistance from all three levels of government for this dissemination work.
 - Move horizontally through all the departments at the local level.
 - Move vertically through all levels: national, regional and state/provincial levels.
 - Make use of the websites of government entities.
- Disseminate the framework document with assistance from organizations in contact with communities and working in health, environmental and social areas.
- Seek support from labor and professional organizations.
- Identify and make use of social media such as internet, Facebook, YouTube.
- Explore possibilities in television through public service announcements, comics, programs.
- Look for opportunities in local television and radio, and in the press.
- Address children and youth, with simple language in materials such as:
 - coloring books,
 - interactive educational sites,
 - workshops.
- Organize community workshops, environmental education groups, online courses.
- Develop posters, brochures and informative newsletters.
- Develop applications (apps) for smart phones.

Joint Public Advisory Council workshop, Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, 13-14 December 2012

- Produce features for YouTube and television news programs.
- Seek out "ambassadors" such as actors, public opinion leaders, civic organizations.
- Seek support from parents' organizations.
- Disseminate information on the concepts addressed in the framework document through:
 - brochures,
 - videos,
 - educational guidelines,
 - art (painting, music, theater).

Potential applications

- Diagnose problems and address them through public policies and planning.
- Participate in university activities, such as class projects, individual research projects, clinics, etc.
- Evaluate current policies and recommend reforms or modifications.
- Promote dialogue among interested individuals in communities, with the aim of reaching agreements and solutions.
- Create tools for empowerment: give communities the power to find their own solutions.
- Provide training to companies, institutions, government authorities.
- Identify risks.
- Generate new projects based on gaps in information.
- Identify communities in North America that are the most affected or vulnerable, or that have not benefitted from information in this regard.
- Make use of videos, traditional games, educational workshops.
- Organize informational visits and environmental-cultural campaigns.
- Address the issue of technological transfer.
- Advocate for capacity building.

Tools

- Assessment of risks: for example, freight trains that cross Canadian First Nations loaded with hazardous materials.
- Education and training.
- Examples of information: ways to measure the level of risk or danger through, for example, tables for categorizing risks.
- Ways of creating alternatives for high-risk substances or activities.
- Regulations.
- New technologies.
- Simple, non-technical language.
- Translation of academic language: explain complex terms or concepts in language that is accessible for the general public.

- Examples adapted to an everyday social context.
- Generation of information and knowledge.
- Trained personnel.
- Registry and monitoring (databases).
- Effective public policies.
- Creation and application of laws for different sectors.
- Channeling a percentage of revenue from fines paid by polluting companies, to allocate to social projects.
- Monitoring and sanctions to such companies.
- Companies' responsibility to dispose of their wastes.
- Political action for decision-making based on CEC report (political will).
- Conservation of natural areas, as ecosystems, and environmental services.
- Application of the three "Rs"—reduce, reuse and recycle—in policies on packaging.
- Citizen participation and oversight.

Challenges

- Influencing politicians and public policies.
- Transparency and access to government information.
- Intensive application of tools indicated in framework document.
- Political barriers, political pressure.
- The issue of confidentiality in companies.
- Mass advertising that sends conflicting messages; excessive consumption.
- Identifying those responsible for pollution, and identifying processes that intensify vulnerability.
- Access to programs and funds.
- Getting information and tools to marginalized communities.
- An economic model that insists on infinite growth on a finite planet.
- Availability of skilled human resources in local settings, to diagnose conditions indicating vulnerability, and to identify and promote the necessary community management for achieving an organized society with capacities in self-management.
- Lack of capacities in communities to participate in public policies, to promote them, modify them, etc.
- Developing technology for diagnosing conditions indicating vulnerability and for creating tools.
- Taking into consideration the cultural characteristics of communities and some of their barriers.
- Dissemination in the traditional languages of communities.
- Difficulty giving information a "community" health focus, especially given a conceptual framework that often focuses on "individual" health.
- Economic and political interests that are threatened by actions seeking to reduce vulnerability.

Joint Public Advisory Council workshop, Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, 13-14 December 2012

- Lack of resources for implementing projects.
- Corruption.
- Population's involvement on the basis of their convictions.
- Short-term thinking and a prevention-oriented focus.
- An excess of information, conceptual frameworks and methodologies; and a lack of evaluations that could help to make decisions.

Group exercise with tools for identifying vulnerable systems

The Program Manager for Terrestrial and Marine Ecosystems, Karen Richardson, presented some tools for mapping and identifying vulnerable systems (natural and human) and for estimating future change. These geomapping tools bring together spatial data with the objective of creating an atlas as a resource for communities and for decision-makers. Included is data that is important for identifying the vulnerability of systems, such as polluting industries, high-priority areas for grassland conservation, protected terrestrial areas, types of terrestrial cover and changes noted in recent years, plus annual CO_2 emissions, to name a few.

Participants worked with these mapping tools as a way to learn about their applications. The teams addressed three sample cases: 1) water scarcity in the Texas portion of the High Plains aquifer; 2) tourism development in Cancún, and 3) pollutants in the Columbia River Basin, on the basis of the following points:

- Geographic areas suffering numerous changes.
- Factors that generate changes.
- Factors that can already be measured, and factors for which data is still lacking.
- Diverse ways of integrating environmental stressors and conditions.
- Means for catching a glimpse of potential future conditions.

This exercise provided an initial opportunity to become familiar with these tools and begin to work with them. If you would like to see the Powerpoint presentation, visit: <<u>www.cec.org/Storage/142/16819_JPAC_presentation_Krichardson.pdf</u>>.

Next, the groups answered the following questions:

- 1. How can this data and information help to empower communities?
- 2. How can this data be used?
- 3. What are the different scales that should be considered in identifying vulnerable communities and ecosystems?
- 4. With a look to the future, what data will be needed to understand the new threats and to avoid unintended consequences?
- 5. What are some recommendations for making data accessible?

The results are presented below:

1. Empowering communities

- Develop a general idea of exposure to chemicals in housing and work environments; use a foundation of more detailed information in cause-effect relations between sources and environmental and health impacts, and identify direct connections with polluting facilities.
- Acquire awareness and knowledge.
- Learn how things are connected; for example, pollutants and water.
- Identify threats and flows: what risks are nearby? Upstream or downstream?
- Generate spaces for working toward local agreements, in order to make decisions appropriately.
- Try to make information accessible in both the way it is presented and the timing.
- Understand the implications and their impacts.
- Make inclusive decisions that lead to effective actions in conserving and managing resources, on the basis of consultations with members of communities and with support from legallyconstituted councils.
- Make industries responsible for disposing of their wastes, and resolve problems arising in cooperation with the government.
- Assure that individuals have the necessary elements for participating in and influencing the development of their communities.
- Work hand-in-hand with communities.
- Develop effective tools for planning.
- Obtain the ecological history of rivers, natural spaces, etc. for analysis.
- Make it possible for communities to develop their own maps, even if technical assistance is required.
- Physically verify changes generated in their territories, and implications of such changes.
- Identify and quantify impacts over time.

2. Use of mapping data

- To assist in confronting misinformation or rumors within communities, and to promote understanding of issues through a science-based approach; to understand the magnitude of problems; to find other factors and other solutions.
- To establish networks and coalitions associated with the same issues.
- This data may be combined with community knowledge or other information (land use plans, specific habitats, abundance, scarcity indicators, and the supply for affected water basins, etc.).
- To provide the foundation for actions, and to take them to authorities and communities.
- For dissemination through the media.
- To urge authorities to make prevention-oriented decisions.
- For increasing the population's awareness of possible risks.
- To consider in territorial ordering and development planning.
- For identifying problems.
- For making decisions.

- To use existing data and maps in local mapping.
- To validate local knowledge.
- To establish geographic areas of interest.
- To concentrate support in ten priority areas, for creating an intervention model.
- To identify the necessary participants on the basis of political jurisdictions.
- To provoke questions: What is happening? What is this? What caused this?
- To quantify externalities and to conduct cost-benefit analysis for decision-making that will benefit communities.
- To model and project future scenarios.

3. Scales for identifying vulnerable communities and ecosystems

- Scales may be national, regional, state, municipal or local.
- All scales are necessary: sometimes we need to see close-up, and sometimes we need to see the big picture.
- There is a need for a scale that, depending on the objective, considers regional and local basins and also aquifers.
- Another scale: for identifying inter-state or international matters that affect communities.
- The examination scale should correspond to the scale of problems; some matters are multiscale.
- A regional scale may be used for identifying critical zones.
- Smaller scales should be adopted for each community.
- Data that links current damages with original states; it is important to be very visual.
- Rates of change should correspond to the scale: if the rate is high, the scale should also be high; if the rate is low, the scale should also be low.

4. Data necessary for understanding new threats and preventing consequences

- Data that assists in modeling and creating potential scenarios, considering the time scale on which problems are formulated.
- A multi-variable, focalized strategy.
- Maps of strategic natural resources, such as water.
- Prospects of phenomena such as climate change and rising ocean levels.
- Review of information for creating future models.
- Collection of data, on water availability, filtration, dredging...
- Social perception.
- Demographic data and its projections.
- Economic and social activities of individuals.
- Natural resources.
- Climate information.
- Natural risks and threats.

- Georeferencing of human use, productive practices and land use.
- Information on population growth, including socioeconomic and environmental indicators that will be affected.

5. Recommendations for making data accessible

- NAPECA Initiative, social services organizations, small donations to students.
- Dialogue with targeted sectors, whether communities or governments, to identify interests and develop improved formats.
- Access to these tools is an important issue: for example, whether or not there is internet or other media for access; whether experience for understanding or using data is lacking; if educational level is very low.
- Identify where interested individuals may go to obtain more information, experience or technical assistance.
- Digital maps.
- Mobile devices.
- Google Earth video-tours.
- Accessibility: not restricting information without justification.
- Capacity building and strengthening in municipal settings.
- Information easy to understand.
- Cooperation agreements with other countries.
- Teach people to use information.
- Making scale models to help target communities develop a better (interactive) understanding.
- Capacity building in communities for interpreting and making decisions on the basis of data.
- System for monitoring over time, for updating maps.
- Define polluting sources, more information.
- In accordance with specific situations, providing information to those responsible for making decisions, and pressuring for the correct application of such information for the benefit of communities.

Workshop Activities: Friday, 14 December 2012

The second day was dedicated to generating proposals for actions to reduce ecosystem vulnerability and to diminish risks for communities dependent upon or inhabiting those ecosystems. Once again, work groups were organized, with each one formulating a proposal for action to be carried out by citizens and local and federal governments. These efforts were based on the following premise.

Action proposals

Work groups focused on identifying five proposals for actions aimed at diminishing ecosystem vulnerability and addressing community needs, to be carried out by:

- a) Ministries (through JPAC)
- b) Local governments

c) Citizens

The proposals for these three sectors are described in detail below:

Ministries

Legislative actions

- Strengthen laws and regulations on environmental protection and to renegotiate the rights of investors; also, to incorporate the environment when negotiating positions.
- Grant legal power to environmental inspectors.

Political actions

- Increase taxes paid by the industries that provoke damages, and designate this revenue for enhancing sustainability.
- Assure compliance with free trade agreements. Investment does not diminish the vulnerability of local communities.
- Link objectives of UN-REDD program and the CEC.
- Integrate policies from energy, economic, environmental, health and water sectors.
- Acknowledge health effects from environmental problems and socioeconomic inequality in development strategies.
- Increase the budget for initiatives such as the North American Partnership for Environmental Community Action (NAPECA).
- Federal government should promote better principles for local planning.
- Regional centers (North America) for applied science and dissemination.
- More tools for promoting resilience.
- Formulate public policies that will lead to urgently needed changes in production and consumption habits.
- Provide grants linked to the pilot framework document for promoting its use through case studies.
- That ministers agree upon joint actions in response to climate change on the basis of a North American agreement. That progress be reported at CEC's 20th anniversary (in 2014).
- Reduce poverty and its causes. The most vulnerable groups are those consistently at a disadvantage.
- Increase the number of environmental inspectors.
- Establish zones where genetically modified organisms are prohibited.
- Provide better information on the labeling of imported products (genetically modified organisms, pesticides).

Organizational actions

• Promote networks or organizations of vulnerable communities for working to exert influence in the political sphere.

Dissemination of information on legal aspects in vulnerable communities and on their rights.

- Open up a dialogue and establish links between health and environment authorities.
- Support (financially) a Youth Conference in which young people can present their proposals and receive training for communicating them to others.
- Promote sustainable food security through traditional knowledge.
- Create jobs and alternatives for generating income through sustainable activities.
- Identify those with traditional knowledge in the three countries.

Ecosystem actions

- Conserve natural ecosystems and their functions; prevent their deterioration and promote their recuperation as fundamental elements in reducing communities' vulnerability.
- Create advertising campaigns that are useful, practical and effective in promoting sustainable management of ecosystems.
- Formulate strategies for local development from an ecosystem, ecoregional perspective.
- Promote responsible sound management of vulnerable ecosystems with justice and equal opportunities.
- Standardize and communicate the concept of ecosystem and its implications.

Pollution actions

- Place a serious focus on the repercussions of problems in oceans for migratory species, as well as for marine fish affected by our shared polluted seas.
- Improve mechanisms for oversight, inspection and sanctions, so that companies and governments will genuinely take responsibility when there are cases of contamination.
- Relocate industries, and remove the sale and distribution of toxic products from urban areas.
- Impose regulations, compliance and taxes for toxic chemicals and fumigating equipment including small airplanes.
- Intensify efforts to reduce the use of toxic products and develop regulations for replacing them with other alternatives.

Trilateral actions

- Combine actions in response to cross-border risks and effects, and shared resources.
- Review environmental policies in Canada, the United States and Mexico. Are they harmonized?
- Assure that companies take responsibility for applying the same standards (in health, security, the environment) in the three countries.

Local governments

Legislative actions

- Formulate and apply laws for conserving and protecting coastal areas.
- Establish a federal environmental tribunal in Mexico that functions independently of the Office of the Federal Attorney for Environmental Protection (*Procuraduría Federal de Protección al Ambiente*—Profepa.

Political actions

- Create programs for providing small donations to vulnerable communities.
- Intensify efforts to reduce the use of toxic products, and promote regulations for replacing them with other alternatives.
- Regional government: create incentives for land use that promotes sustainability in a period of five years.
- In five years: local governments should review and formulate plans for land use that adheres to the CEC framework.
- Make a commitment to sustainable development through (long-term) planned growth.
- In the short term (two years): local governments will review land use plans in relation to CEC's framework document and will identify gaps.
- Open up a dialogue and create links between government offices responsible for the areas of health and the environment.
- Manage sanitary landfills in a sustainable manner.
- Implement programs for payments for environmental services and seek funding.
- Conduct research studies to analyze social networks in local communities.
- Formulate public policies that involve respect for fragile ecosystems and adaptable infrastructure.
- Implement public policies aimed at promoting ancestral agricultural and traditional medicinal practices in indigenous communities.
- Strengthen the operation of current citizen councils associated with the Ministry of the Environment and Natural Resources (*Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales*— Semarnat) and the Ministry of Agriculture, Stockbreeding, Rural Development, Fisheries and Food (*Secretaría de Agricultura, Ganadería, Desarrollo Rural, Pesca y Alimentación*—Sagarpa), and establish communication links with the JPAC, since the three spheres of government and organized civil society participate in these councils.
- Restrict and regulate the use of chemicals that endanger the health of biodiversity and the human species.

Organizational actions

- Assist the organizational capacity of vulnerable communities in an appropriate, sustained manner, to help them confront their own vulnerability.
- Construct green buildings and infrastructure, and promote activities designed to diminish consumerism.
- Create environmental "brigades" in vulnerable communities with assistance from citizen organizations and local governments.
- Information on water use and management.
- Initiate programs for managing and recycling trash.
- Assure that local activities do not negatively impact vulnerable communities or their neighbors.
- Identify vulnerable communities and provide them with information regarding ways they can take their own actions.

Joint Public Advisory Council workshop, Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico, 13-14 December 2012

- Reject monoculture.
- Create state-level data systems and maps with vulnerable communities and ecosystems.
- Regional (state) centers for applied science and dissemination, and the creation of networks.
- Promote regional youth conferences to give them the opportunity to present their proposals and receive training on environmental topics (sustainability).
- Identify those who have traditional knowledge in the different states and organize a meeting for exchanging experiences and presenting these individuals.
- Environmental education for youth and children.
- Organize forums for public consultations.
- Place renewed value on natural resources in communities.
- Formulate policies that will provide environmental information to all social groups, through open dialogue, through social networks or through workshops and other activities.
- Bring together the organized civil society, universities and research institutes in communities.
- Identify and provide training to community leaders.
- Sister cities in environmental aspects.

Citizens

Individual actions

- Reduce exposure to advertising.
- Participate in organizations, become informed, and become an agent of change in your circle of influence.
- Buy local, sustainable products and services.
- Participate in conferences to receive training and generate ideas and solutions.
- Know your surroundings and identify vulnerable areas.
- Use and manage resources in a responsible manner.
- Monitor compliance with proposals.
- Promote the shared use of cars, and use bicycles and public transportation.
- Create urban vegetable gardens, and compost wastes. Plant trees.
- Save water and energy. Choose energy-saving appliances.

Collective actions

- Academics: calculate the cost of inaction in environmental, economic and health over a period
 of two to five years.
- Improve agricultural practices (eliminate genetically-modified organisms) by using natural fertilizers and pesticides.
- Spread the information you have, and encourage behavioral changes in the community.
- Participate in collecting data for scientific research with citizen science schemes and crowd sourcing.

- Provide incentives for citizen education through committees for attending to vulnerability through specific efforts in the region.
- Create committees or opportunities for reaching agreements in order to implement joint local actions (government and society) for reducing vulnerability and promoting sustainable development (three levels).
- Practice social and environmental justice; provide follow-up to implementation and compliance with justice.
- Seek assistance from organizations in communities (rotary clubs, churches).
- Organize and promote corrective and preventative actions.
- Create economic incentives for companies that implement sustainable environmental practices.
- In short: we need to act now!

Recommendations for JPAC to serve as a bridge and to represent communities and citizens

Policies

- Promote and create tripartite alliances of environmental educators and provide teachers with high-quality materials.
- Insist that political terms be changed in the agenda; what is involved here is the source for continuity through political opportunities.
- Seek funding for programs that provide assistance for community members and for student participation.
- The CEC needs to expand its action plan on climate change; improve its management of greenhouse effect gases; and contribute to greater resilience of communities and ecosystems.
- Request more economic assistance.
- The CEC should be made known through federal authorities.

Dissemination

- Prepare printed documents.
- If environmental legislation is genuinely implemented and complied with, vulnerability will be reduced; CEC could cooperate and contribute by disseminating information.
- JPAC members could present the CEC to their own organizations (and others in civil society), so that the Council's link with the Commission and its activities is clearly identified.
- JPAC can also develop visual educational material and provide it to the appropriate centers for dissemination.
- Improve communication and dissemination of information regarding the JPAC and its work through an informative newsletter sent to citizens and institutions (who will in turn inform their communities).

Organization

 Establish personal and professional relations in which local governments are offered assistance based on solid scientific knowledge. Time will be required to build trust and cooperation.

- Create links with other organizations.
- Open regional offices responsible for carrying out the organization's objectives and local objectives.
- Improve communication and keep it ongoing.
- Collect information and input from meetings with various environmental sectors and put together a document for the Secretaries.

Recommendations for communication to other agents and sectors

Mass media

- Increase participation by mass media in JPAC meetings.
- Target specific communities of users when disseminating information by internet.
- Add a participative mechanism for casting votes on the CEC website, to facilitate participation in key topics.
- Find logistical solutions that make it possible to be more inclusive. Online meetings.
- Invite communication media.
- Use various communication media (print and electronic) for disseminating information regarding events and their outcomes.
- All participants in these meetings should promise to disseminate information regarding the JPAC and the CEC, within their possibilities. The CEC can provide a package of information to organizations interested in disseminating such information on their website.
- Use YouTube to present successful experiences to the general public.
- Share information by way of television and other communication media.

Other media

- Establish contacts with universities so they can disseminate information at the local level.
- Identify representatives in each region to participate in meetings.
- Use long-distance communication.
- Ask civic organizations (beneficiaries of the NAPECA initiative) to communicate JPAC's actions (maps...) to their associates in the communities.
- Promote CEC activities through government communication media (at the three levels).
- Select a representative to network and communicate with workshop members.
- Disseminate conclusions from each workshop.
- Create networks or links among members of society to make it possible to disseminate information.
- Create a database with workshop members for exchanging information.
- Use local communication media for disseminating information regarding JPAC's work.
- JPAC should participate in important meetings and plenary sessions of councils and organizations established by the population, and should assure that JPAC members hold all the meetings necessary for maintaining ongoing communication.

- The CEC and JPAC should establish clear messages that truly reach other sectors.
- Share information with work colleagues and universities.

Policies

- Take advantage of the 20th anniversary [of the CEC] to identify its friends and followers, and to
 consider the possibility of renewing the structure and focus of the North American Agreement
 on Environmental Cooperation (NAAEC) to assign greater responsibilities.
- Invest in communication.

Ideas for future workshops

Dissemination

- Improve the process of publicizing events.
- Organize simultaneous, linked workshops in different places, with the aim of diversifying and sharing ideas.
- Invite spokespersons from local communities (for example, Albert Cail) to attend meetings.
- Formulate solutions by region, and thus consider the possibility of holding more than one workshop. Ways to reduce costs may be explored with support from state or provincial governments.
- Request copies of the videos of events, for their dissemination.
- As soon as new contacts have been obtained, distribute them.
- The five representatives from each country serving on the Joint Advisory Public Council should attend the workshops.

Organization

- Exactly how effective and efficient is this organization, the CEC? Has it changed, taking into consideration the government that was in power when it was created?
- Include more personnel in community spheres.
- Take care to assure that contributions by participants, leaders and facilitators are acknowledged.
- Strengthen the development of systems consistent with the data and maps of the vulnerable communities and ecosystems that have been identified as high priorities for the CEC.
- Call for ideas that are more clear and realistic.
- Consider the possibility that JPAC organizes its next meeting in a community or with exclusively local stakeholders (without environmental experts).
- Workshops should allow more time for discussion. Avoid scheduling them on holidays.
- Invite indigenous communities.
- JPAC can seek participants directly from communities.
- Make the concepts analyzed highly visible in participants' work centers.
- Hold next workshop in a natural setting, in harmony with nature.

- Seek support from already-established citizen councils, such as the Advisory Council for Sustainable Development in Mexico (*Consejo Consultivo para Desarrollo Sostenible de México*).
- Achieve personal commitments.
- Work to have leaders from associated spheres in attendance.

Topics

- Is the important commitment made 20 years ago, when things were simpler, still the same commitment needed today?
- Address other more diverse topics.

In this point emphasis was placed on how important it is that the proposals obtained from the workshop actually reach the corresponding authorities. Also, the role of JPAC representatives was highlighted, as a fundamental link with the government.

Workshop Conclusions and Closing

The participating public, JPAC representatives and workshop facilitator agreed that the three objectives initially proposed for the workshop were fully met. It was a very productive meeting, in which excellent ideas were generated, together with a spirit of collaboration and commitment to shared efforts. Participating in the groups were individuals from numerous communities from the three countries, and they contributed their experiences and knowledge in different areas, as well as their multiple, enriching life paths, for a multicultural perspective with a shared goal: to reduce ecosystem and community vulnerability in North America to the effects of climate change. The current challenge is to continue the networking given an impulse through the workshop, and respond to the invitation to maintain an open dialogue in the weeks and months following the event.

After an update on JPAC work and some administrative matters, and following reports presented by representatives of national and governmental advisory committees (NAC and GAC), David Angus, President of the Winnipeg Chamber of Commerce, was announced as the new JPAC Chair for 2013. Lastly, sincere appreciation was expressed to all the participants, and the workshop was concluded, formally closing JPAC's Ordinary Session 12-03.

Annex: Workshop Photos



Welcoming words from CEC Executive Director Irasema Coronado



Participation by Elizabeth Smith



Presentation by Evelia Rivera Arriaga



Dialogue between panelists and the public. Evelia Rivera, Carl Sidney and Elizabeth Smith



Working groups in action



Writing down proposals for framework document



Presentation of mapping tools



Working with mapping tools to identify vulnerable systems

1=			L	_	1
		C. Alexandra Maria Francisco Maria Alexandra Maria Alexandra Maria Alexandra Maria Alexandra Maria Alexandra Maria Alexandra Maria Alexandra Maria			
	CEC Bill reaused to a second of a bill reaction of	K ADNE STATISTICS CONTRACTOR THEORY OF THE STATISTICS THEORY OF THE STATISTICS THEORY OF THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS OF THE THE STATISTICS OF THE STATIST OF THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS OF THE STATISTICS OF THE	TTNC Transford Terret To satework Address or consummer for the sate and a safe Taken of sate and address and a safe Taken of sate and	JPAC: ware form access al factors restor particular to rest served to enter the served t	
A	HARME HEARING	PRIMING (Asses) Report R.S. D.B. and (ARC: an THERMOST TRANSMISSION	Projection, estimate allocate address of parameteriality repairs and preventiality repaired and preventiality repaired and preventiality repaired and preventiality.	Prior or, i Prior or contention? Internet such of vesses they statuted such as a second they statuted sectors, second contents, second	
	Printed. Distant Secondaria Care antipa Paratat	Processi Record Produces and Social the Constant size is and support machinesized.	Comparison : Consequences :	HERRIC COLUMNS	
a .		-			

Presentation of results



Closing words and announcement of new JPAC Chair, David Angus

Joint Public Advisory Committee (JPAC) Regular Session 12-03 and Workshop

"Reducing Ecosystem Vulnerability, Responding to Community Needs: Tools and Information for North American Action"

Mérida, Yucatán, México 13–14 December 2012

List of participants as of 20 December 2012

Public

 Acevedo, Javier Coordinador ONUDI Av. Revon 1425 México, D.F. Tel: 55 5107 6937 e-mail: javac-13@hotmail.com

2. Adalla, Nadia

Tecnológico de Conkal C37 num. 190 por 40 y 42 fracc. Las Margaritas Cholul Mérida, Yucatán México 97305 Tel: 999 948 0013 e-mail: nadia.adalla@yahoo.com

- Aguilar Morales, Salomon Jefe de Programa de Medio Ambiente Instituto de la Frontera sur A. C. Sexta Calle Norte Poniente No. 134 Comitan de Dominguez, Chiapas México 30069 Tel: 963 110 6701 e-mail: saloaguila2002@yahoo.com.mx
- Alcocer Puerto, Elias Miguel Profesor - Investigador Universidad Autónoma de Yucatán Calle 42 No 543 x71 Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 999 930 0090 e-mail: alcocerpuerto@yahoo.com

 Aldana Guillermo, Jacqueline del Socorro Auxiliar de dirección en Pronatura Península de Yucatán Pronatura c.32#269 x 47 y 47-A Col. Pinzón II Mérida, Yucatán México 97207 Tel: 999 988 4436 e-mail: jaldana@pronatura-opy.org.mx

Alonzo Marrufo, Emma Rosa Director YAAX BEH A.C. calle 15 No. 86A x 16 y 18 Col. Cuhuburná Mexico, Yucatán Mexico 97205 Tel: 999 278 3205 e-mail: emmar@prodigy.net.mx

- Alvarado Mejía, Jorge Alberto Presidente Sociedad Mexicana de Toxicología C 17 # 102D x 20 y 22 Col. Itzimná Mérida, Yucatán, México 97100 Tel: 999 926 6405 e-mail: jorge.alvatros@gmail.com
- Álvarez Torres, Porfirio Chief Technical Advisor Gulf of Mexico Large Marine Ecosystem Organizacion de las Naciones Unidas para el Desarrollo Industrial (ONUDI) Av Revolución 1425 Mezanine Col Tlacopac San Angel México, Distrito Federal, México 1040 Tel: 5 490 0900 ext 23703 e-mail: alvarez.porfirio@gmail.com

- Alvarez Avila, Karín Eugenia Coordinador de Proyecto Pronatura Penísula de Yucatán c.32 No. 269 Pinzón II Mérida, Yucatán México 97130 Tel: 988 44 36 e-mail: karinalvarez@hotmail.com
- 10. Andrade Hernandez, Maria Directora Ejecutiva Pronatura Península de Yucatán Calle 32 No. 269 x 47 y 47-A Mérida, Yucatán México 97207 Tel: 999 988 4436 e-mail: mandrade@pronaturappy.org.mx
- 11. Amezcua Orellana, Cintia Rubí Director for Trade Issues Mexican Ministry of Environment and Natural Resources Blvd. adolfo Ruiz Cortinez 4209 Col. Jardines en la Montaña Mexico City, D.F. Mexico 14210 Tel: 55 5628 3910 e-mail: cintia.amezcua@semarnat.gob.mx
- 12. Arjona Massa, Andy Francisco UADY
 c.53f #252 x 44 y 46
 Mérida, Yucatán
 México 97203
 Tel: 9469666
 e-mail: afam_006@hotmail.com

13. Balam Pereira, Martín Manuel Representante Legal Simbiosis SA DE CV Calle Tabi # 49A Chetumal, Quintana Roo México 77080 Tel: 983 832 5543 e-mail: presidente@simbiosismirn.com

14. Beltrán García, Alfredo Analista
Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Aprovechamiento Sustentable
Av. Patricio Trueba de Regil esquina calle niebla Fracc. 2000
Campeche, Campeche
México 24090
Tel: 981 811 9730
e-mail: alfiler4@hotmail.com

15. Becerra Rodríguez, Perla Unidad Multidisciplinaría de Docencia e Investigación Calle 23ª #215 Col. La Florida Municipio de Hunucma Yucatán México 97138 Tel: 999 149 7661 e-mail: pbr_tec_recreacion@hotmail.com

16. Benavides Rosales, Gabriel Jefe de la Unidad de Planeación y Política Ambiental Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales (SEMARNAT) Delegación Yucatán Calle 15 No. 115-A por 2 y 4 Frac. Montecristo Mérida, Yucatán México 97137 Tel: 999 942 1328 e-mail: gabriel.benavides@semarnat.gob. mx 17. Boa Alvarado, María del Refugio TUNZA-UNEP Youth Advisor for Latin American and Caribbean region TUNZA-UNEP St. 100, 399 Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico 97225 Tel: 999 271 8562 e-mail: boa_maria@hotmail.com

18. Bravo Reyes, Mara UADY Calle 14 No. 103 frac Montecristo Mérida, Yucatán México 97133 Tel: 9 44 40 84 e-mail: mara271@hotmail.com

19. Burgos Lugo, Diana Elidé Presidenta Ts'unu'un Conservación y Desarrollo A. C. calle 57 Fco. Montejo por 56 y 58 num.374 Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97203 Tel: 999 194 5597 e-mail: tsconservacionydesarrollo@gmail. com

20. Cal Durán, Carla María Pasante tesista de la Licenciatura en Manejo de Recursos Naturales Universidad de Quintana Roo Boulevard Bahía s/n esq. Ignacio Comonfort Col. del Bosque Chetumal, Quintana Roo Mexico 77019 Tel: 044 983 733 9725 e-mail: carlacalduran@hotmail.com

 Callaghan, James Director Reserva Biocultural Kaxil Kiuic Calle 10 No. 66 por 7 y 9, Col. San Antonio Cinta Merida, Yucatán Mexico 97139 Tel: 920 9183 e-mail: kaxilkiuic@gmail.com 22. Campos Capetillo, Maria del Ángel Lic. en Admin. de recursos naturales Pronatura Península de Yucatán Calle 32 #269 x 47 y 47A Col. Pinzon II Merida, Yucatán México 97202 Tel: 988 4437 e-mail: marigel_cc@hotmail.com

23. Canto Martin, Julio César Asistente Servicios de Ingeniería y Consultaría Ambiental SCP Calle 33D No. 498-A dep 32 por 72 García Ginerés Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97070 Tel: 999 925 3290 e-mail: jcanto@sicascp.com.mx

- 24. Carballo Parra, Rocío Maricruz UQROO Milán #294 Chetumal, Quintana Roo México 77037 Tel: 983 132 2042 e-mail: purplelife89@gmail.com
- 25. Castillo Trueba, Becky Marista University of Merida C.15, P.O. 97205 Mérida, Yucatán México 97205 Tel: 999 575 3532 e-mail: becky.dbc@gmail.com
- 26. Combest-Friedman, Chelsea Consulante de cambio climatico y manejo de recursos costeros Calle 8 No. 253 por 5 y 7 Col. Vista alegre Norte Mérida, Yucatán Mérida 97130 Tel: 999 201 7457 e-mail: chelsea.combestfriedman@gmail. com

27. Cupul Canché, Santiago Arturo Coordinador Turismo de Naturaleza
Secretaría de Fomento Turístico del Gobierno del Estado de Yucatán calle 60 norte No. 299-E Col.
Revolución Ex-Cordemex, Centro de Convenciones Yucatán Siglo XXI, Int. S/N Planta alta
Mérida, Yucatán
México 97000
Tel: 999 930 3760 Ext. 22039
e-mail: santiago.cupul@yucatan.gob.mx

28. De Anda Fuentes, David E. Investigador Titular INAPESCA Blvd. del Pescador Esq.Antigua carretera a Chelem Progreso, Yucatán México 97320 Tel: 969 935 4044 e-mail: deandadavid@yahoo.com

- 29. De La Rosa, Alfonso Investigador INIFAP Km 15.5 Carretera Campeche-Pocyaxum Campeche, Campeche México 24520 Tel: 981 813 8748 e-mail: delarosa.alfonso@inifap.gob.mx
- 30. Del Muro Próspero, Antonio Roberto
 Director y Postulante
 BUAMBI Actividades Técnicas, Profesionales y Científicas
 Teotihuacan 46 letra B)
 Ecatepec de Morelos, Estado de México
 México 55138
 Tel: 5 569 0039
 e-mail: buambi@hotmail.com

31. Denegre-vaught Charuf, Luisa Teresa Directora Mundo y Conciencia A.C. C. 59 No. 451 x 52 y 54 Centro Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 999 928 6673 e-mail: conciencia.movimiento@gmail.com

32. Durán Miranda, Claudia Marisol Bióloga GECI C.13A int. #126 x 22 y 24 Chuburná de Hidalgo Mérida, Yucatán México 97205 Tel: 999 184 8881 e-mail: clau.duran.miranda@hotmail.com

33. Dzib Gamboa, Mariana del Socorro Universidad Modelo Carretera Antigua a Cholul Mérida, Yucatán México 97180 Tel: 999 207 4166 e-mail: marianadzibgamboa@hotmail.com

34. Estrella Guemez, Gladys Aurora Universidad Autónoma de Yucatán
C. 53 # 231 x 44 Francisco de Montejo
Mérida, Yucatán
Mexico 97203
Tel: 999 992 4162
e-mail: a_gladys15@hotmail.com

35. Flores Sanchez, Erik de Jesus UADY
Calle 64 No. 355 x 37 y 39
Merida, Yucatán
México 97000
Tel: 999 215 9149
e-mail: erik_s59@hotmail.com

- 36. Garnica Cabrera, Alejandra Universidad Autónoma de Mérida St. 49 # 349 54, 56 Francisco de Montejo Mérida, Yucatán México 97203 Tel: 999 285 2529 e-mail: gcaale@live.com
- 37. Gasse-Margat Rauda, Joris Adrien Manager Kanan Kab A.C. Calle 32 # 326-b Col. Emiliano Zapata Norte Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97129 Tel: 944 2545 e-mail: gassemargat@gmail.com
- 38. Gijon, Victor Periodico por Esto Mérica, Yucatán México Tel: 9302760 e-mail: vgijon-arte@hotmail.com
- 39. Gomez, Manuel Director
 Office of Recommendations
 US Chemical Safety Board
 2175 K Street NW
 Washington, D.C.
 USA 20037
 Tel: 202 261 7611
 e-mail: manuel.gomez@csb.gov
- 40. González Ceballos, Josefina Universidad Autónoma Chapingo San luis Chuburna calle 33 diagonal lote 2 Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97200 Tel: 999 233 2450 e-mail: josefinagonzalez@live.com.m

- 41. González Navarrete, Rosa Leticia Tesorera Sociedad Mexicana de Toxicología calle 17 No, 102 D x 20 y 22 Col Itzimna Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97100 Tel: 999 104 4767 e-mail: gnavar2@hotmail.com
- 42. González Neri, Irma Investigadora Universidad del Caribe Calle 30 Pte. Mz. 28 Lte. 30 Región 101 Cancún, Quintana Roo México 77519 Tel: 9 988 8144 00 EXT. 1139 e-mail: igonzalez@ucaribe.edu.mx
- 43. Granillo Celis, Mariana Universidad Marista de Mérida Periférico Norte Tablaje Catastral 13941 Carretera Mérida-Progreso Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97300 Tel: 044 999 216 3108 e-mail: mgcelis@gmail.com
- 44. Gutiérrez Dulá, Reina Etelvina Apoyo logistico Pronatura
 c. 80 No. 547A San Sebastián Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 988 4436
 e-mail: queenreina@hotmail.com
- 45. Hernández Mabarak, Pamela Berenice Universidad Marista de Mérida C. 33 #381 x 52 y 54. Fco. de Montejo Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97203 Tel: 9993 38 8211 e-mail: pamebere2601@hotmail.com

- 46. Hernández Puente, Adriana Delegada federal de la SEMARNAT en el Estado de Yucatán Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales, Delegación Yucatán Calle 15 No. 115 Inc. A por 2 y 4 Frac. Montecrisito Mérida, Yucatán, México 97137 Tel: 999 942 1302 e-mail: ahpuente@semarnat.gob.mx
- 47. Herrera Mendoza, Andrea Universidad Marista de Mérida C 50#478 x 57 y 61 frac. Francisco de Montejo Mérida, Yucatán, México 99203 Tel: 999 338 6156 e-mail: anhm_02@hotmail.com
- 48. Huesca Tercero, Walfred Ulyses Subdirector en Yucatán DRP-CGCRB
 CONABIO
 Calle 65 A No 1069A por 124 y
 126 Col. Xoclán
 Mérida, Yucatán
 México 97246
 Tel: 999 938 1366
 e-mail:
 ulyseshuesca@prodigy.net.mx
- 49. Ize Lema, Irina Ana Rosa Consultora Calle 56 num. 442 entre 49 y 51 Centro Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97000 Tel: 555 568 3953 e-mail: irinaize@ine.gob.mx
- 50. Koh Pasos, Yamile Sinai UNAM
 c. 34 # 707 por 77B y 77C
 fraccionamiento Tixcacal Opichen Mérida, Yucatán
 Mexico 97246
 Tel: 999 162 9892
 e-mail:
 yamile skp01@hotmail.com

- 51. León-Palomo, Mario Alberto Centro de Investigación Científica de Yucatán Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 999 912 8443 e-mail: marioleonpalomo@gmail.com
- 52. Lopez Chin, Angel Eduardo Administrador UMA SABACCHE c- 21 #225 x 10 y 10 b Vergel 2 Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97173 Tel: 983 1285 e-mail: eduardolopez009@gmail.com
- 53. Loria Palma, Jose Ines Presidente
 Fundación San Crisanto AC 30 Nº 135
 San Crisanto, Yucatán México 97420
 Tel: 999 926 0236
 e-mail: sancrisanto@prodigy.net.mx
- 54. Lopez Perez, Adrian Javier Jefe de Departamento Areas Naturales Protegidas SEDUMA Calle 64 X 53 y 47 A Centro Mérida, Yucatán México 971400 Tel: 930 3382 e-mail: ajlopez@hotmail.com
- 55. Madray, Sandra Research & Education Chemical Sensitivities Manitoba 71 Nicollet Avenue Winnipeg, Manitoba Canada R2M 4X6 Tel: 204 256 9390 e-mail: madray@mts.net

- 56. Martinez, Veronica Reportera Periodico por Esto Calle 60 esquina calle 73 Centro Mérida, Yucatán, México Tel: 930 2765 e-mail: vermarguz@gmail.com
- 57. Mayen Mena, Alfredo Coordinador General de Educación, Divulgación Y Desarrollo Tecnológico Comisión Nacional Forestal Periferico Poniente 5360, San Juan de Ocotan Zapopan, Jalisco, México 45019 Tel: 333 777 7000 ext 3501 e-mail: alfredo.mayen@gmail.com
- 58. Mati Moreno, Wendy Vocera
 Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Aprovechamiento Sustentable
 Av. Patricio Trueba de Regil por Calle Niebla Frac 2000
 Campeche, Campeche, México
 Tel: 981 811 9730
 e-mail: wendyma-9@hotmail.com
- 59. Méndez Arreola Roberto Carlos Educación Ambiental ITESM Av. Eugenio Garza Sada 2501 Sur Col. Tecnológico Monterrey, Nuevo León México 64849 Tel: 818 367 2636 e-mail: robcmendez@itesm.mx
- 60. Méndez Cortés, Mario Antonio Subdelegado de Planeación y fomento Sectorial Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales, Delegación Yucatán Mérida, Yucatán México 97137 Tel: 999 942 1303 e-mail: mario.mendez@semarnat.gob.mx

- 61. Miranda Vallat, Yannick Universidad Marista Av. Campeche G8a con 17 Royal Campeche Mérida, Yucatán México 97120 Tel: 944 0671 e-mail: yannick-mv@hotmail.com
- 62. Moguel Mejia, Aida Luz Universidad Marista de Mérida c-39 #312 x 24 y 26 frac Monte Albán Mérida, Yucatán México 97114 Tel: 999 122 9914 e-mail: aida.moguel@gmail.com
- 63. Mohedano Maldonado, Irma Roxana
 Estudiante de Posgrado
 UNAM
 Calle 53e por 100a y 106. Núm.
 888 Fraccionamiento Las
 Américas
 Mérida, Yucatán
 México 97302
 Tel: 307 2674
 e-mail:
 pulcher_puella@hotmail.com
- 64. Morales López, Judith Adriana Coordinadora Técnica de Proyectos WWF Zacnicte A , SM 50 , M88 L 21 Cancún, Quintana Roo México 77500 Tel: 998 848 1789 e-mail: jamorales@wwfmex.org
- 65. Mora-Zacarias, Miguel Angel Professor Texas A&M University 5001 Smugglers Rd College Station, Texas, Texas United States 77845 Tel: 979 845 5775 e-mail: mmora@tamu.edu

- 66. Moreno Ruiz, Juan Antonio Universidad Nacional Autónoma de México Calle59 D #1041 entre 124 y 132 Fracc. Las Americas Mérida, Yucatán México 97302 Tel: 999 251 9482 e-mail: antonio.moreno@ciencias.unam.mx
- 67. Munguía Gil, María Teresa Profesora Investigadora Facultad de Ciencias antropológicas Universidad Autónoma de Yucatán Mérida, Yucatán México 97305 Tel: 999 930 0090 ext 2216 e-mail: teresa.munguia@uady.mx
- 68. Navarrete Carballo, Juan Carlos Instituto Tecnologico de Conkal C. 135 # 408 x 50 y 52 Merida, Yucatán México 97299 Tel: 999 932 3088 e-mail: jcarbalho@hotmail.com
- 69. Nusico Juan, Manuel Consultor Forestal Comisión Nacional Forestal Calle 13 No. 129 x 28 Col. México Norte Mérida, Yucatán México 97190 Tel: 948 4864 e-mail: jnusico@hotmail.com
- 70. Novelo Quijano, Gonzalo Javier Subgerente de producción y productividad Comisión Nacional Forestal Gerencia Yucatán Calle 13 No. 129 x 28 Col. México Norte Mérida, Yucatán México 97208 Tel: 999 948 4864 e-mail: gnovelo@conafor.gob.mx

- 71. Quijano Lozano, Maria Begoña Universidad marista de Mérida Periférico Norte tablaje Catastral 13941 Carretera Mérida-Progreso Mérida, Yucatán México 97300 Tel: 999 121 4460 e-mail:begoquijano@gmail.com
- 72. Rivadeneyra Gutiérrez, Elena Presidenta Ya'axtal Beh Naturaleza, Sociedad y Cultura A.C. Calle 13 No. 660 x 58 y 60 Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico 97217 Tel: 999 987 0824 e-mail: yaaxtalbeh@gmail.com
- 73. Roche Cano, María Leticia Jefatura de Conservacion Ambiental Ayuntamiento de Mérida Edifcio Administrativo Calle 67A Merida, Yucatán México 97210 Tel: 999 942 0025 ext 81463 e-mail: leticia.roche@gmail.com
- 74. Rodríguez Hernández, Diego Ismael Biologist Instituto Tecnológico de Conkal Street 31 B Num. 368 X 10 Suburb: San Esteban Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico 97149 Tel: 9991 74 9889 e-mail: diegorodriguezhdez@hotmail.com
- 75. Rojas Bolaños, María Luisa Coordinadora de Planeación y Evaluación Facultad de Medicina Universidad Autónoma de Yucatán Avenida Itzáez entre 59 y 59A Mérida, Yucatán México 1225-A Tel: 999 923 3260 e-mail: rbolanos@uady.mx

- 76. Rosado Fuentes, Gina Griselda Asistente UQROO Avenida universidad s/n Chetumal, Quintana Roo Mexico 77027 Tel: 983 119 2299 e-mail: ginepolis@hotmail.com
- 77. Ruiz Ramírez, Jennifer Denisse Profesora-Investigadora Universidad de Quintana Roo Boulevard Bahía esq. Ignacio Comonfort Chetumal, Quintana Roo México 77019 Tel: 983 835 0300 ext. 313 e-mail: jenifer@uqroo.mx, jenniferdrr@gmail.com
- 78. Salinas López, Artemisa Ingeniería Ambiental SoWiTec Servicios México José María Ibarrarán No. 20 Col. San José Insurgentes D.F. México 03900 Tel: 5 662 4909 e-mail: asl@sowitec.com
- 79. Sanchez Gongora, Sunny Massiel Pasante Tesista de la Licenciatura en Manejo de Recursos Naturales Universidad de Quintana Roo Boulevard Bahía s/n esq. Ignacio Comonfort, Col. del Bosque Chetumal, Quintana Roo Mexico 77019 Tel: 044 983 104 9255 e-mail: sunny_sanchez@hotmail.com
- 80. Santana Tello, Paitrio Efraín Responsable Proyectos Técnicos Vidal y Asociados Calle 26 número 65 x 7 y 9 Colonia San Antonio Cinta Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 999 920 2039 e-mail: proyectos@vidalyasociados.com

- 81. Santos, Roberto Carlos Auxiliar de Presidencia Ya'axtal Beh Naturaleza, Sociedad y Cultura A.C. Calle 13 No. 660 x 58 y 60 Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97217 Tel: 999 987 0824 e-mail: twopackk@hotmail.com
- 82. Soares, Denise Investigadora Instituto Mexicano de tecnologia del Agua Paseo Cuauhnahuac 8532 Colonia Progreso Jiutepec, Morelos, México 62550 Tel: 777 329 3668 e-mail: denise_soares@tlaloc.imta.mx
- 83. Solis Pasos, Gerardo Proyecto REDD Comisión Nacional Forestal Calle 13 N° 129 por 28 y 30 Colonia Mexico Merida, Yucatán, México 97128 Tel: 999 948 4864 e-mail: gsolis@conafor.gob.mx
- 84. Sosa y Parra, Rosario del Carmen Presidente Asociación por los Derechos de los Animales en Yucatán 41 # 563 por 82 y 82 A col. Centro Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 999 920 7501 e-mail: vaniaz29@hotmail.com
- 85. Torres Lara, Ricardo Profesor Investigador Universidad de Quintana Roo Boulevard Bahía s/n Esq, Ignacio Comonfort Col. del Bosque Chetumal, Quintana Roo México 77050 Tel: 983 835 0300 ext. 229 e-mail: ritola59@gmail.com

- 86. Tzec Vera, Guadalupe SEMARNAT C. 27 # 228 x 14 y 16 Mérida, Yucatán, México
- 87. Valtierra Hernández, Ariel Investigador Universidad del Caribe Calle Sacalum #28 Mza 45 Cancún, Quintana Roo México 77500 Tel: 881 4400 ETX 1139 e-mail: avaltierra@ucaribe.edu.mx
- 88. Verónica, Rodrigo Representante Legal Ts'unu'un Conservación y Desarrollo A. C. calle 57 Fco. Montejo por 56 y 58 Mérida, Yucatán, Mexico 97203 Tel: 999 194 5597 e-mail: tsconservacionydesarrollo@gmail. com
- 89. Vidal Martínez, Víctor Investigadora CINVESTAV Antigua Carretera a progreso km. 6 Mérida, Yucatán México 97310 Tel: 999 942 9472 e-mail: vvidal@mda.cinvestav.mx
- 90. Weston Leonard 4201, 35ave Leduc, Alberta Canada T9E 6A6 Tel: 780 298 8997 e-mail: len.weston@yahoo.ca
 - Zaragoza Ortega, David Arturo Delegado UNAM Calle 19A, entre 40B y 42 Mérida, Yucatán Mexico 97219 Tel: 999 215 1020 e-mail: zardavid@gmail.com

Invited Experts

- 91. Abel, Troy Associate Professor of Environmental Policy Western Washington University Huxley College of the Environment 516 High Street, MS 9085 Dept. of Environmental Studies Bellingham, Washington United States 98225 Tel: 360 650 6133 e-mail: troy.abel@wwu.edu
- 92. Black, Andrew Junior Policy Analyst Assembly of First Nations 473 Albert St, 9th Floor Ottawa, Ontario Canada K1R 5B4 Tel: 613 241 6789 x.231 e-mail: ablack@afn.ca
- 93. David William, Jon
 Sr. Policy Analyst
 Assembly of First Nations
 473 Albert Street, Ottawa, Ontario
 Canada K1R 5B3
 Tel: 613 241 6789 x202
 e-mail: wdavid@afn.ca
- 94. Diaz Romo, Lourdes Patricia Coordinadora
 Proyecto Huicholes y Plaguicidas Brasilia 2964, 2A, colonia Colomos Providencia Guadalajara, Jalisco México 44660 Tel: 333 641 3669 e-mail: lpdiazromo@gmail.com

95. Loring, Eric Senior Environment/Health Researcher Inuit Tapiriit Kanatami
75 Alber St, Suite 1101 Ottawa, Ontario Canada K1P 5E7 Tel: 613 238 8181 e-mail: loring@itk.ca

- 96. Lejbowicz Amand, Augustine Agathe Coordinadora del Programa de Ciencia y Baja California COBI, A.C. Popocatepetl 28-1, Col. Condesa México, Distrito Federal México 06100 Tel: 555 574 7909 e-mail: alejbowicz@cobi.org.mx
- 97. Rabasa Salinas, Alejandra Senior Attorney Environmental Law Institute 2000 L Street NW Washington, District of Columbia Estados Unidos 20036 Tel: 202 939 3877 e-mail: rabasa@eli.org
- 98. Savage, Andrea
 CarbonPlus Associate
 EcoLogic Development Fund
 25 Mout Auburn St, Suite 203
 Cambridge, Massachusetts
 United States 02138
 Tel: 617 441 6300
 e-mail: asavage@ecologic.org
- 99. Setton, Eleanor May Environmental Exposures CAREX Canada - University of Victoria UVIC Geography PO Box 3060 STN CSC Victoria, British Columbia Canada V8W 3R4 Tel: 250 853 3819 e-mail: eleanor@carexcanada.ca

Speakers

100. Batllori Sampedro, Eduardo Adolfo Secretaría de Desarrollo Urbano y Medio Ambiente del Estado de Yucatán Calle 64 No. 437 x 53 y 47-A Mérida, Yucatán México 97000 Tel: 999 930 3388 e-mail: eduardo.batllori@yucatan.gob.mx

101. Miller, Albert Walter Commissioner, Jeff Davis County C.E. Miller Ranch PO. Box 67, 311 Texas Ave Valentine, Texas United States 79854 Tel: 432 894 0574 e-mail: milleraw@yahoo.com

102. Rivera Arriaga, Evelia Secretaria de Medio Ambiente y Aprovechamiento Sustentables del Estado de Campeche Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Aprovechamiento Sustentables del Estado de Campeche Av. Patricio Trueba de Regil, Esq. Calle Niebla Planta Alta Fracciorama 2000 San Francisco, Campeche México 24090 Tel: 981 811 9730 e-mail: irisvega@smaas.campeche.gob.mx

103. Sidney, Carl Stanley Chief Executive Officer Teslin Tlingit Council P.O. Box 136. Teslin, Yukon Canada YOA 1B0 Tel: 867 390 2532 Ex:301 e-mail: Carl.sidney@ttcteslin.com 104. Smith, Elizabeth
Director for Ecological and
Human Health Integration,
Sustainable and Healthy
Communities Research Program
US Environmental Protection
Agency
109 TW Alexander Drive, MD
E205-09
Research Triangle Park, North
Carolina
United States 27517
Tel: 919 541 0620
e-mail: smith.betsy@epa.gov

JPAC Members

105. Alanis Ortega, Gustavo Presidente Centro Mexicano de Derecho Ambiental A.C. Atlixco 138, Colonia Condesa México D.F. 06140 Tel: 52112457 ext. 13 e-mail: galanis@cemda.org.mx

106. Angus, David Bruce The Winnipeg Chamber of Commerce Suite 100 259 Portage Ave Winnipeg, Manitoba Canada R3B 2A9 Tel: 204 944 3300 e-mail: dangus@winnipeg chamber.com

107. Browes, Pauline
627, 10 Guildwood Parkway
Scarborough, Ontario
Canada M1E 5B5
Tel: 647 284 5416
e-mail: browes@rogers.com

108. Correa Sandoval, Adriana Nelly Directora Catedratica Centro de Calidad Ambiental -ITESM Campus Monterrey Av. Eugenio Garza Sada No. 2501 Sur Monterrey, Nuevo León México 64849 Tel: 818 328 4032 e-mail: ancs@itesm.mx

109. Garver, Geoffrey Adjunct Professor University of Montreal & Laval Universities
20 rue des Soeurs Grises #106 Montreal, Quebec Canada H3C 5M1 Tel: 514 582 0929 e-mail: gginmont@sympatico.ca

110. Gutiérrez Lacayo, Martín Director
Pronatura México, A. C. Aspérgulas 22 (antes Pino) Col. San Clemente
México, Distrito Federal
México 01740
Tel: 555 635 5054
e-mail:
martingutierrez@pronatura.org.mx
JPAC Chair for 2012

111. Marcus, Felicia Felicia Marcus Member State Water Resources Control Board 1001 I Street, 24th Floor Sacramento, CA 95814-2828 Tel.: (916) 341 5609 e-mail: Felicia.Marcus@waterboards.ca.gov 112. Waterhouse, Jonathan Executive Director Yukon River Inter-Tribal Watershed Council 725 Christensen Drive, Suite 3 Anchorage, Alaska United States 99501 Tel: 907 258 3337 e-mail: jwaterhouse@yritwc.org

SEM Task Force

- 113. Adkins, Jocelyn Attorney Advisor U.S. EPA
 1200 Pennsylvania Ave, NW Washington, District of Columbia United States 2460 Tel: 202 564 5424 e-mail: adkins.jocelyn@epa.gov
- 114. Costain, Emerson Kimble Senior Policy Advisory Environment Canada
 200 Sacre Coeur Blvd Gatineau, Quebec Canada K1A 0H3 Tel: 819 953 9774
 e-mail: kimble.costain@ec.gc.ca
- 115. García Galindo, Rodrigo Director Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales Blvd. Adolfo Ruiz Cortines No. 4209, Piso 2 Colonia Jardines en la Montaña Ciudad de México, Distrito Federal México 14210 Tel: e-mail: rodrigo.galindo@semarnat.gob.mx

General Standing Committee

- 116. Albovias, Anna Sheila Manager, CEC Environment Canada 200 boul. Sacré-Coeur Gatineau, Quebec Canada K1A 0H3 Tel: 819 994 4747 e-mail: anna.albovias@ec.gc.ca
- 117. Correa, Sylvia Senior Advisor US EPA
 1200 Pennsylvania Ave NW Washington, District of Columbia United States 20004 Tel: 202 262 2812 e-mail: correa.sylvia@epa.gov

NAC & GAC

- 118. Houseal, Brian Chair U.S. National Advisory Committee Adirondack Council 25 Sam Spear Road Westport, New York United States 12993 Tel: 518 477 074 e-mail: blhouseal12@gmail.com
- 119. Trujillo, Octaviana Chair
 U.S. Governmental Advisory Committee
 2692 N. Sandstone Way
 Flagstaff, Arizona United States 86004
 Tel: 928 523 8788
 e-mail: octaviana.trujillo@nau.edu

Facilitators

- 120. Berea Núnez, Raúl IMAC-Madre Tierra Rodrigo Cifuentes 39-B Col. San José Insurgentes Del. Benito Juárez México, Distrito Federal México 03900 Tel: 555 563 0029 e-mail: acmadretierra@gmail.com
- 121. Mejia Vazquez, Valentina Ivanova IMAC-Madre Tierra Rodrigo cifuentes 39-B Col. San José Insurgentes Del. Benito Juárez México, Distrito Federal México 03900 Tel: 555 563 0029 e-mail: acmadretierra@gmail.com
- 122. Padrón Gil, Francisco José Director
 IMAC-Madre Tierra
 Rodrigo Cifuentes 39-B
 Col. San José Insurgentes
 Del. Benito Juárez
 México, Distrito Federal
 México 03900
 Tel: 555 563 0029
 e-mail: fpadrongil@gmail.com

Commission for Environmental Cooperation

123. Cabrera, Orlando Program Manager, Air Quality and PRTR
393, rue St Jacques Ouest, Bureau 200
Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2Y 1N9
Tel: 514 350 4332
e-mail: ocabrera@cec.org 124. Coronado, Irasema Executive Director
393, St Jacques Street, West suite
200
Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2Y 1N9
Tel: 514 350 4300
e-mail: Icoronado@cec.org

125. García Velasco, Mauricio Representantede la oficina de la CCA en México Ave. Progreso No. 3 Col. Santa Catariana, Coyoacán México, Distrito Federal México 04010 Tel: 5 659 5021 e-mail: mgarciav@cec.org

126. Morin, Jocelyne JPAC Assistant
393, St-Jacques Street, West suite
200
Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2Y 1N9
Tel: 514 350 4300
e-mail: jmorin@cec.org

127. Orozco, Marcela JPAC Liaison Officer
393, St-Jacques Street, West suite
200
Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2Y 1N9
Tel: 514 350 4300
e-mail: morozco@cec.org

128. Paz Miller, Liliana Logistics Coordinator
393, rue St Jacques Ouest, Bureau
200
Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2Y 1N9
Tel: 514 350 4313
e-mail: lpmiller@cec.org 129. Ratliff, Dane Director, SEM Unit 393, St-Jacques Street, West suite 200 Montreal, Quebec Canada H2Y 1N9 Tel: 514 350 4332 e-mail: dratliff@cec.org

130. Richardson, Karen Program Manager, Terrestrial and Marine Ecosystems
393, St Jacques Street, West suite
200 Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2Y 1N9
Tel: 514 350 4326
e-mail: krichardson@cec.org

131. Rivero Huguet, Mario Consultant
393, St Jacques Street, West suite
200 Montreal, Quebec
Canada H2L3R4
Tel: 514 993 1521
e-mail: mario.riverohuguet@mail.mcgill.ca

132. Schmidt, Karen NAPECA Coordinator Progreso No. 3 Viveros de Coyoacán Distrito Federal, México México 04110 Tel: 555 659 5021 e-mail: kschmidt@cec.org

133. Stoub, Jeff Communications and Publications Manager
393, St Jacques Street, West suite 200 Montreal, Quebec Canada H2Y 1N9 Tel: 514 350 4327 e-mail: jstoub@cec.org